Agenda

GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY
L e s W e = )
e R e e S T By S S e S A R o S oD

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION. SHOW & $PORTS FACILITIES

Board of Directors

Friday, October 7, 2011

Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe, NW - Grand Rapids, Ml

1. Call to Order
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting
3. Committee Reports
A. Operations Committee
B. Finance Committee

Approval of SMG Financial Statements
Approval of CAA Financial Statements

4. Approval of CAA Booking Policy

5. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars

6. Public Comment

72 Adjournment

Steven R. Heacock

Action

Information

Action

Action

Action

Information

Next Meeting Date: Friday, November 4, 2011, immediately
following the CAA Finance Committee Meeting



Item 2

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Friday, September 2, 2011

1. Call to Order

Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:15 a.m. Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs
recorded the meeting minutes. Chair Heacock added two action items to the agenda: director and officer
insurance renewal and FY2011 Audit Plan.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chair
Lew Chamberlin
Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnerney
Floyd Wilson, Jr.

Members Absent: George Heartwell
Joe Tomaselli

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Scott Gorsline Grand Rapids Griffins
Tim Gortsema Grand Rapids Griffins
Steve Harney Full Circle Marketing & Design
George Helmstead Experience Grand Rapids
Lynne lke SMG
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Doug Small Experience Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG

2, New Venue Websites

Lynne Ike, SMG Marketing Director, and Steve Harney, owner of Full Circle Marketing & Design,
revealed the new venue websites. On the old websites, content management was clumsy, changes were
difficult to make, and the images were static. The new websites include rolling images, improved search
features, continually updated news, dynamic calendar of events, ticketing, exhibitor forms with ability to
order services on-line, exhibitor guidelines, arts partners’ information, scrolling banners, guest services
information, and a section finder. A lot of redundancy is built into the sites to locate content easily.

Board members agreed the new websites were colorful, fun, and easy to navigate. It was decided that,
before going live, the websites would: feature the CAA more prominently, promote the Grand Rapids
Griffins on every page as a push button, include a link to Pure Michigan, be accessible on mobile phones,
and include a YouTube video link for every upcoming event.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 2, 2011 -2

3. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve the Minutes of the June 3, 2011,
meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried
unanimously.

4. Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee. Mr. Small reported that occupancy has increased 10.9% over the
previous year. Mr. Helmstead provided an overview of recent sales activities, marketing
efforts, and major bid presentations.

B. Finance Committee.

i. SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the periods ended June 30, 2011, and July 31, 2011. After
review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

ii. CAA Financial Statements
Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements for the
periods ended June 30, 2011, and July 31, 2011. After review and discussion, the motion carried
unanimously.

iii. 2011 Audit Plan Submitted by BDO USA, LLP

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve the FY 2011 Audit Plan and
Engagement Letter. The motion carried unanimously.

iv. Directors’ & Officers’ Liability Insurance Renewal

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve renewal of the annual directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance. The motion carried unanimously.

S. Approval of Application to Liquor Control Commission for Special License

Mr. MacKeigan recommended CAA Board approval to submit an application to the Michigan Liquor
Control Commission for a special liquor license, in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food
Festival.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Mclnerney, moved the approval to submit an application to the
Michigan Liquor Control Commission for a special liquor license. The motion carried unanimously.

6. Booking Policy Update

Chair Heacock stated that there were no additional comments from the Finance Committee meeting held
earlier.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
September 2, 2011 -3

7. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at Van Andel Arena®
and DeVos Place®.

8. Public Comment

None.

9, Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Friday, October 7, 2011, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW, immediately following the
CAA Operations Committee meeting.

11. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facliity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 57 420 477 477 -
ATTENDANCE 33,185 479,815 513,000 513,000 -
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 190,981 2,340,189 2,531,170 2,531,170 -
ANCILLARY REVENUE 265,711 1,624,555 1,890,266 1,890,266 -
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 456,692 3,964,744 4,421,436 4,421,436 -
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 5,206 213,039 218,245 218,245 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 461,898 4,177,783 4,639,681 4,639,681 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 17,580 158,524 176,104 176,104 -
FINANCE 38,450 192,063 230,513 230,513 -
MARKETING 10,361 93,801 104,162 104,162 -
OPERATIONS 194,847 1,245,287 1,440,134 1,440,134 -
EVENT SERVICES 125,137 841,719 966,856 966,856 -
BOX OFFICE 9,300 69,911 79,211 79,211 -
SALES 51,859 310,800 362,659 362,659 -
OVERHEAD 320,221 1,735,325 2,055,546 2,055,546 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 767,755 4,647,430 5,415,185 5,415,184 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (305,857) (469,647) (775,504) (775,503) -
INCENTIVE FEE - 0 -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (305,857) (469,647) (775,504) (775,503) -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

August, as with July, came in consistent with budget overall. Shortfall

in revenue was offset by savings in indirect expenses. The mix of events
continues to be the main reason for the shortfall and the start of the year
has been a very solid one especially when you look at the comparison to
prior year activity.




DE VYOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH August August August

Actual Budget FY 2011
Number of Events 29 29 21
Attendance 13,086 23,875 8,710
Direct Event Income $106,115 $145,314 $57,754
Ancillary Income 147,807 154,788 103,051
Other Income 3,312 7,633 6,269
Indirect Expenses (406,538) (451,266) (406,212)
Net Income ($149,304) ($143,531) ($239,138)
YTD YTD 2012 YTD 2012 YTD 2011

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 57 57 42
Attendance 33,185 46,065 18,789
Direct Event Income $190,981 $289,223 $130,494
Ancillary Income 265,711 313,524 151,833
Other Income 5,206 12,216 12,656
Indirect Expenses (767,755) (902,532) (768,909)
Net Income ($305,857) ($287,569) ($473,926)
EVENT INCOME

Direct event income came in a little lower than budget for the month, however, well ahead

of prior year activity.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in consistent with budget overall with Audio/Visual income offsetting
some shortfalls in other revenue categories.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in ahead of budget overall. The extremely warm July and August

has not had a large negative impact on utilities as was feared.




DeVos Place
Income Statement
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2011

Current Month  Current Month CurrentMonth  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $117,428 $156,781 ($39,353) $67,874 $238,304 $313,264 ($74,960) $158,274
Service Revenue 74,522 94,172 (19,650) 52,067 124,597 191,608 (67,011) 80,756
Service Expenses (85,835) (105,639) 19,804 (62,187) (171,920) (215,649) 43,729 (108,536)
Totat Direct Event Income 106,115 145,314 (39,199) 57,754 180,981 289,223 (98,242) 130,494
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 2,747 5,059 (2,312) 1,659 7,761 9,174 (1,413) 8,268
F&B Catering 52,739 48,176 4,563 36,436 89,964 98,518 (8,554) 51,145
Novelty 0 375 (375) 0 0 375 (375) [4]
Booth Cleaning 14,121 19,510 (5,389) 8,908 14,756 37,753 (22,997) 10,191
Telephone 0 1,836 (1,836) 0 0 3,564 (3,564) 0
Electricat Services 15,350 38,116 (22,766) 11,434 37,344 79,359 (42,015) 14,357
Audio Visual 49,518 29,035 20,483 37,953 77,884 55,995 21,889 49,547
Internet Services 3,492 3,311 181 756 16,519 6,581 9,938 1,653
Equipment Rentat 9,840 9,370 470 5,905 21,483 22,205 (722) 16,672
Totat Ancillary Income 147,807 154,788 (6,981) 103,051 265,711 313,524 (47,813) 161,833
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 1,854 3,050 (1,196) 3,828 1,914 3,050 (1,136) 6,978
Total Other Event Income 1,854 3,050 {1,196) 3,828 1,914 3,050 (1,136) 6,978
Total Event Income 255,776 303,152 (47,376) 164,633 458,606 605,797 (147,191) 289,305
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 1,357 1,750 (393) 1,802 2,715 3,500 (785) 3,604
Other Income 101 2,833 (2,732) 639 577 5,666 (5,089) 2,074
Total Other Operating Income 1,458 4,583 (3,125) 2,441 3,292 9,166 (5,874) 5,678
Adjusted Gross Income 257,234 307,735 (50,501) 167,074 461,898 614,963 (153,065) 294,983
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 175,500 231,512 (56,012) 162,831 325,421 463,024 (137,603) 309,175
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 49,542 60,020 (10,478) 41,329 81,683 120,040 (38,357) 72,731
Labor Allocations to Events (69,748) (123,027) 53,279 (58,748) (133,500) (246,054) 112,554 (92,638)
Net Salaries and Benefits 155,294 168,505 (13,211) 145,412 273,604 337,010 (63,406) 289,268
Contracted Services 27,401 23,340 4,061 23,662 51,835 46,680 5,155 48,260
General and Administrative 22,842 28,475 (5,633) 15,309 40,155 56,950 (16,795) 31,881
Operations 5,917 9,812 (3,895) 37,617 8,625 19,624 (10,999) 39,514
Repair and Maintenance 46,671 41,922 4,749 16,217 81,591 83,844 (2,253) 53,802
Operational Supplies 12,304 19,083 (6,779) 10,595 19,666 38,166 (18,500) 13,878
Insurance 7,813 17,192 (9,379) 16,772 23,626 34,384 (10,758) 33,548
Utilities 114,754 129,450 (14,696) 127,405 241,743 258,900 (17,157) 232,019
SMG Management Fees 13,542 13,487 55 13,223 26,910 26,974 (64) 26,736
Total Operating Expenses 406,538 451,266 (44,728) 406,212 767,755 902,532 (134,777) 768,906
Net Income(Loss) From Operations (149,304) (143,531) (5,773) (239,138) (305,857) (287,569) (18,288) (473,923)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) (149,304) (143,531) (5,773) (239,138) (305,857) (287,569) (18,288) {473,923)

7



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report

For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2011

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 33 33 19,984 36,795 344,380 472,923
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall 1 1 407 1,250 7,106 10,375
Banquets 2 2 580 1,300 10,436 14,636
Meetings 13 13 3,114 3,120 54,345 42,887
Other 8 8 9,100 3,600 42,339 64,976
GRAND TOTALS 57 57 33,185 46,065 458,606 605,797
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 57.89% 57.89% 60.22% 79.88% 75.09% 78.07%
Consumer/Gated Shows 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Devos Performance Hall 1.75% 1.75% 1.23% 2.71% 1.55% 1.71%
Ballroom Exclusive 351% 3.51% 1.75% 2.82% 2.28% 2.42%
Meetings 22.81% 22.81% 9.38% 6.77% 11.85% 7.08%
Other 14.04% 14.04% 27.42% 7.82% 9.23% 10.73%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of August 31, 2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1,156,981
617,933
99,141
$1,874,056
$1,874,056
110,107
349,712
41,585
763,482
$1,264,885
202,850
712,177
(305,857)
$609,170
$1,874,055




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of August 31, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

55,504
6,185

49,517
49,517
127,069
161,275

112,850

56,016

617,933



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,071,221 (775,504) 295,717 368,125
Benchmark 750,000 700,000
Excess 1,071,221 (775,504) (454,283) (331,875)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,996,443 4,639,681 9,636,124 9,514,544
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
Revenue Excess 196,443 439,681 536,124 414,544
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids ~ Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item 3.B.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 6 94 100 100 -
ATTENDANCE 45,346 496,854 542,200 542,200 -
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 200,590 1,058,858 1,259,448 1,259,448 -
ANCILLARY INCOME 133,969 967,586 1,101,555 1,101,555 -
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 334,559 2,026,444 2,361,003 2,361,003 -
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 459,045 2,176,395 2,635,440 2,635,440 -
TOTAL INCOME 793,604 4,202,839 4,996,443 4,996,443 -
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 28,294 150,410 178,704 178,704 -
FINANCE 30,109 209,812 239,921 239,921 -
MARKETING 37,535 234,695 272,230 272,230 -
OPERATIONS 215,957 1,387,384 1,603,341 1,603,341 -
BOX OFFICE 19,192 105,372 124,564 124,564 -
LUXURY SEATING 4,721 82,555 87,276 87,276 -
SKYWALK ADMIN 2,685 21,271 23,956 23,956 -
OVERHEAD 232,825 1,162,405 1,395,230 1,395,230 -
TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 571,317 3,353,904 3,925,222 3,925,222 -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 222,287 848,935 1,071,221 1,071,221 -
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 0 - -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 222,287 848,935 1,071,221 1,074,221 -
Comments:

August concluded a busy month for concerts as 4 shows were hosted.
Overall revenue for the month was down as compared to budget as

a couple of the shows did not perform at expected levels. The fiscal year
though has started much stronger than prior year.

General Mapager




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH August August August

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 4 4 0
Attendance 26,918 34,000 0
Direct Event Income $86,282 $157,796 ($182)
Ancillary Income 82,336 85,016 0
Other Income 245,244 276,142 156,346
Indirect Expenses (277,007) (327,101) (318,140)
Net Income $136,855 $191,853 ($161,976)
YTD YTD 2012 YTD 2012 YTD 2011

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 6 6 3
Attendance 45,346 51,000 12,233
Direct Event Income $200,590 $236,694 $36,744
Angcillary Income 133,969 127,524 38,134
Other Income 459,045 491,650 327,052
Indirect Expenses (671,317) (654,202) (620,165)
Net Income $222,287 $201,666 ($218,235)

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell short of budget for the month with most of the shortfall being attributed to lower than
expected sales for the Britney Spears concert.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in at expected levels for the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

indirect expenses came in ahead of budget for the month. Most of the savings a result of not being

able to do some traditional maintenance projects due to the busy concert schedule.




Current Month Current Month

Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2011

Current Month  Yearto Date  Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $31,427 $146,948 (115,521) $0 $126,244 $220,422 (94,178) $64,459
Service Revenue 225,369 185,704 39,665 0 362,948 278,556 84,392 157,876
Service Expenses (170,514) (174,856) 4,342 (182) (288,602) (262,284) (26,318) (185,591)
Total Direct Event Income 86,282 157,796 (71,514) (182) 200,590 236,694 (36,104) 36,744
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 62,204 63,916 (1,712) 0 98,548 95,874 2,674 28,336
F&B Catering 6,232 6,628 (396) 0 12,013 9,942 2,071 1,003
Novelty Sales 13,900 14,472 (572) 0 23,408 21,708 1,700 8,777
Audio Visual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18
Total Ancillary Income 82,336 85,016 (2,680) 0 133,969 127,524 6,445 38,134
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 46,846 70,348 (23,502) 0 74,700 105,522 (30,822) 27,542
Total Other Event Income 46,846 70,348 (23,502) 0 74,700 105,522 (30,822) 27,542
Total Event Income 215,464 313,160 (97,696) (182) 409,259 469,740 (60,481) 102,420
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 138,084 146,795 (8,711) 94,060 276,301 268,130 8,171 189,031
Advertising 55,044 52,083 2,961 58,724 99,044 104,166 (5,122) 102,724
Other Income 5,270 6,916 (1,646) 3,662 9,000 13,832 (4,832) 7,755
Total Other Operating Income 198,398 205,794 (7,396) 156,346 384,345 386,128 (1,783) 299,510
Adjusted Gross income 413,862 518,954 {105,092) 156,164 793,604 855,868 (62,264) 401,930
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 175,401 160,923 14,478 101,840 349,042 321,846 27,196 290,945
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 48,775 45,035 3,740 29,640 88,502 90,070 (1,568) 65,492
Labor Allocations to Events (105,719) (72,806) (32,913) (12,272) (188,134) (145,612) (42,522) (75,485)
Net Salaries and Benefits 118,457 133,152 (14,695) 119,208 249,410 266,304 (16,894) 280,952
Contracted Services 12,901 22,140 (9,239) 21,652 37,677 44,280 (6,603) 44,243
General and Administrative 22,656 27,758 (5,102) 29,596 41,483 55,516 (14,033) 49,349
Operations 1,504 4,742 (3,238) 2,339 2,419 9,484 (7,065) 4,192
Repair and Maintenance 11,299 17,599 (6,300) 11,775 23,411 35,198 (11,787) 18,594
Operational Supplies 10,782 17,550 (6,768) 5,512 7,979 35,100 (27,121) 23,041
Insurance 2,134 10,840 (8,706) 16,586 11,778 21,680 (9,902) 22,065
Utilities 83,732 79,833 3,899 98,249 170,077 159,666 10,411 150,993
SMG Management Fees 13,542 13,487 55 13,223 27,083 26,974 109 26,736
Total Operating Expenses 277,007 327,101 (50,094) 318,140 571,317 654,202 (82,885) 620,165
Net Income(Loss) From Operations 136,855 191,853 (54,998) (161,976) 222,287 201,666 20,621 (218,235)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) 136,855 191,853 (54,998) (161,976) 222,287 201,666 20,621 (218,235)

1



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary
For the Two Months Ended August 31, 2011

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
6 6 45,346 51,000 409,259 469,740
6 6 45,346 51,000 409,259 469,740
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
For the Two Months Ending August 31, 2011

ASSETS
2,964,493
1,388,092
124,688
$4,477,273
$4,477,273
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
496,896
837,328
1,858,341
777,073
$3,969,639
(200,000)
147,808
337,539
222,287
$507,634
$4,477,273




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of August 31, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 96,814

Ticketing 285,413

Merchandise 13,756

Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place (127,069)

Operating 960,370
Over 30 Days 125,808
Over 60 Days 33,000
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 1,388,092



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,071,221 (775,504) 295,717 368,125
Benchmark 750,000 700,000
Excess 1,071,221 (775,504) (454,283) (331,875)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,996,443 4,639,681 9,636,124 9,514,544
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
Revenue Excess 196,443 439,681 536,124 414,544
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 320,834

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. COCNVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board
From: Robert J. White
Subject: August 31, 2011, Administrative Financial Statements
Date: October 4, 2011

Iltem 3.B.i

The attached interim Balance Sheet and Income Statement are formatted to provide additional
information concerning the Convention/Arena Authority administrative account (unconsolidated) —
excluding facility manager financial activity (separately reported). Consolidated statements will
continue to be compiled on a quarterly basis.

These statements are prepared on a cash basis. The Balance Sheet includes a two-year comparative
financial position at August 31 for Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012. The Income Statement provides a line
item comparison of accounts for the current fiscal year as compared to a similar period in the prior fiscal
year. In addition, the Income Statement provides a comparison of current year budget to prior year (FY
2011-subject to audit) actual. It will allow the reader to compare expenditure trends with full-year
budgetary allowances.

ltems of interest in the two financial statements are explained as follows:

Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated):

e The cash and investments position decreased by $.4 million from June 30, 2012. Minimal
receipts were offset by routine monthly disbursements.
¢ Fund balance decreased by $1.1 million from the August 31, 2010 level.

August Revenue/Expense:

e Parking Revenue. Current-year revenues reflect timely deposits from the City Parking office.
Prior year activity reflected delays in transmittals. When comparing revenue from like periods,
revenues are trending up by 4.4%.

e Utility Expense. Current-year invoice processing is running ahead of prior year. When
comparing like periods, utility costs are increased 5.8% over prior year.



e Marketing-CVB/Sports Commission. The current-year expense of $25,000 includes payment of
the 2011 incentive fee to Experience Grand Rapids. The 2010 incentive fee was expensed in FY
2010 (no expense recorded in FY 2011).

These reports are intended to provide a summary analysis of administrative activities over the course of
the fiscal year. These reports continue to be updated on a monthly basis.



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated)

August 31,2011
2010 2011
Assets
Cash - Operating $ 66,254 $ 135,609
Investments - Kent County 22,260,044 20,973,949
Capital Assets (Net) 659,549 788,841
Total Assets $ 22,985,847 $ 21,898,399
Liabilities & Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 65,443 $ 126,975
Fund Balance 22,920,404 21,771,424
Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $ 22,985,847 $21,898,399




Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ending June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Transfers from SMG
Parking
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Operations
- Utilities
- Parking Management
- Pedestrian Safety
- Landscaping
- DID Assessment

- Marketing - CVB/Sports

Capital R/ZR/A®
- Capital Projects
Administration
- Wages/Benefits
- Consulting Services
- Professional Services
- Diversity Initiative
- Procurement of Art
- Insurance

- Supplies/Other
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures
Balance, beginning of period
Balance, end of period

NOTES:

(1) R/R/A - Repair/Replacement/Additions

(2) Subject to Audit

Annual Year-To-Date
FY 2011 FY 2012 Percentage FY 2011 FY 2012 Percentage
Preliminary © Budget Change 7/1 - 8/31 7/1 - 8/31 Change

$ 3,250,000 2,595,318 (20.1) $ 300,000 $ 200,000 (33.3)

956,700 1,090,000 13.9 10,718 52,127 486.4
200,030 206,000 3.0 22,577 13,875 (38.5)

280,981 30.000 (89.3) - 2,558 100.0
4.687.711 3.921.318 (16.3) 333,295 268,560 (19.4)

2,288,905 2,349,600 2.7 234,766 297,413 26.7

190,802 213,579 11.9 - 15,185 100.0
101,521 108,000 6.4 2,494 - (100.0)

17,895 30,000 67.6 - - -

55,103 58,721 6.6 - - -

75,000 100,000 333 - 25,000 100.0
3,371,336 966,000 (71.3) 907,275 69,496 (92.3)
132,652 116,724 (12.0) 17,546 14,995 (14.5)

- 76,663 - - - -

77,645 71,000 (8.6) 1,725 6,602 382.7

27,601 50,000 81.2 376 6,872 1,827.7

9,100 30,000 229.7 - - -
23,561 24,000 1.9 23,561 23,391 0.7)

34,487 67.500 95.7 2.907 4,922 169.3
6.405.608 4.261.787 (33.5) 1,190.650 463,876 (61.0)

(1,717,897) (340,469) 3 _(857355) 3 (195.316)
24.728.394 23,010,497
3 23,010,497 22,670,028




VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item 5

(Revised)

DATE ‘11 EVENT EC MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Mon, Oct 3 Savor DG 5/3 Bank Vault 6P-8P Premium service staff training
Tue, Oct 4 Michael & Associates DG 5/3 Bank Vault 5P-10P Banquet
Wed, Oct 5 CAA/CIG DG 5/3 Bank Vault 6P-9P VIP Reception
Thur, Oct 6 Savor DG 5/3 Bank Vault 6P-8P Premium service staff training
Fri, Oct 7 Savor DG 5/3 Bank Vault 11A-8P Open to public during ArtPrize
Sat, Oct 8 Savor DG 5/3 Bank Vault 11A-8P Open to public during ArtPrize
Sun, Oct 9 Savor DG 5/3 Bank Vault 11A-6P Open to public during ArtPrize
Mon, Oct 10 | Savor DG Banquet D 6P-7P TIPS training

Concessions 3 7P-8P Concessions training
Tue, Oct 11 Available
Wed, Oct 12 Available
Thur, Oct 13 | Available
Fri, Oct 14 Griffins vs Toronto GC | TODD Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Home Opener Hockey Game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate
RM Banquet B 6P-8P Season Ticket Holder Mug Pick-up
GVSU Crease Club 6P-8P Dance staging area
West Side Beer DG East Nest 6P-9:50P Banquet
Sat, Oct 15 Available
Sun, Oct 16 Available
Mon, Oct 17 Available
Tue, Oct 18 Available
Wed, Oct 19 Available
Thur, Oct 20 | Available
Fri, Oct 21 Available
Sat, Oct 22 Available
Sun, Oct 23 Available
Mon, Oct 24 | Savor DG Banquet D 6P-7P TIPS training
Concessions 3 7P-8P Concessions training
Tue, Oct 25 Available
Wed, Oct 26 Available
Thur, Oct 27 | Available
Fri, Oct 28 Griffins vs Abbotsford GC | TODD Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Dance Studio RM Crease Club 6P-8P Dance staging area
Sat, Oct 29 Available
Sun, Oct 30 Available




[IeH 2oueuLIONdd SOAS( = HIAQ

Swooy Sunssy 20IUOA = d-V NOW

4-V JOOI3AQ JeARY = I~V O

d-v wooljjed = -V T1vd

I H-V swooy Sunssjy J0o[1oAQ = H-V 0DD d-V swooy Sunssq A1j[eD pueln = 4-V OO O-V slleH ¥qiyxg = D-V HA
ujanopy | wepgizl — wdog:g
D\ [esieayay/|led oM wdpo:g — wdoo:| HdAQ AuowasaD Buso[) dzZUJUY
ainpedaq juai) wdogol
074 7 uondasay Eamo”o r-EMoo“o
. [EALLIY JOPUBA wdQQ:g-wdog:y
:ajuepuany [BALY U910 wdoo:¥
53| va [EALSY pueg wdoo't Ag901 VIHOOIS TAW 3ZI4d.LdV 40 FISVL V
U] peoT ainjiuwng yHomeH wdp0:9-wdoo:Z
va U] peoT uondnpoid wdQo:9-WepQ:6 g-v wooljleq MOTO¥ALIV FZNIdLIIV
pooy dn oid 0} 1801 I8N wdoo:g OV lieH Haqiyx3
InQ peo wdgQ:| L-wdoo:g my
sleujwas wdo: L-weo:0l an Aigjjes pueio
sleujwag wdpo:g-wepo:0L 3 Aigjjes) puels)
Moys pood wdQ:G-weQo:6 -V lIeH Hqyx3
sapissanun @ 86910y SdH wdoo:z}-wepe:g 3 300IBA0 D9
wnNIOSUOY) sayeT Jealo wdoo:g-weps:g 4 A9jeo puelg
uonelodion aupiun wdpo:5-wepo:8 4 00UBnD 99O
Bunaaly sjueinelsay wdoo:S-Wepo:g d JOOUAAD 99
000°S oxspog Emoo“mémoo”w D 'av oopang 99
. wooy sajeg wdQQ:g-weQ0:8 HO Y00l8AD 99
-duepuany Buuiq anpeasn wdpo:g-wepg: . uonOUN4-aid YOOUBAQ JOAY Moys pood Jied
B3| va [EALY JEIS SO Pue Sjay0 weQe:g O-V IleH uqiux3 | |BnuuY 831135 poo4 uopJo9 T10¢ § 100 ‘d3m
asueuuoMad | wdep:g — wdog:L
uadQ bunesg wdoo:2
uado Aqqon) wdpg:9
uadQ s100(Q apisINO wdoo:9 HdAQ
AV uj 3Ao wdpo:g — wepQ:9 %00Q UOA/HJIAQ AVMY ATd FNOD 4D AVvMavodd
va o417 Joy Jybry Jaye pabejs juswdinb3g Ay Req v d-v wooljeq MO|313YY SZUdUY
uondasay wdoo:§-wdog:e uonduUN4-aid YOOUSAQ JaAly
9SNOH ueduaWYy wdoo:g-wdoo:z d OOH3AD 99
Jeulwag wdoo: 1 -wdoo:zZL an Asjjes puein
aon99 ® gvoo usamaq jjemire aseld o} sdo wdpo:zZi a-v Agjjeo puesg
Jeulwag euueH yoer | wdpo:zi-weoo:Li a-v Aisjjes puelo
@099 % gvo9 ussmiaq jlemite |ind o} sdo weQQ:L L a-v Aisjjes puei
Jeuiag | weQQ:| L-wego:0L ao Aisjleg puein
sleulwag wdoo:S-Wwego:0l 3 Agjjeo puelo
moys poo4 wdpQ:G-Wepo:6 OV lleH Hqyx3
WNIPJOSUOY) sayeT 1ealn wdpo:5-wepg:g 4 A9jeo puel
000°S 0Xx3posg Emoo”m-Emoo”w D 'av ¥oopanp 99
. wooy sse wdpo:g-weQQ:g HO YO0OU3AQ 99
sduepuany }sepjealg euueH xomw wep:0L-weQo:8 uonoUN4-a1d JOOUSAQ JaAly MOoys pood f1ed
53| va [EALLY JBIS SJ9 PUE Sjayd Wepe's O-V IleH 3iquyx3 | |BNUUY 80IAI3S pOO4 UOpIoYH TTOC ¥ 100 'sanl

110T — ATII3IM dASIATYT
HOVTFSOASCA




[[eH 39uBuLIOpad SOASd = HAAd

swooy Sunssy 201U = -V NOW

4-V J00[9AQ JoATY = J-V OY

d-v wooljeg = g-v TIvd

4 H-V swooy Sundd JOOsAQ = H-V 0DD d-V swooy Sunsd A19|[eD pueiD = 4-V DD O~V SlieH ¥quxd = O-V H4
SUOISSag weqQQ:| L-Weoy:6
001 yeaig weQpy:6-weoe:6
. SUOISSOS pue QWO weQg:6-WweQo:g
-9Juepuany 1sepjealg g uonensitay weQQ:g-weQo: .
53| va [BALLY JuU3)ID wepo:9 av 99 ADOTOIQYVD 40 LYV JHL 8100 °LVS
aoueuLopdd | wdg:g — wdpo:g
uado bupeas wdog:/
0ozt uadQ AqqoT wdoo:2
-JuBpuUANY uadQ ss00Q 2pisin0 wdog:9
3| v 1anosbueyn agl HdAQ AVMY A74 FN0D D AVMAVOUL
AV I1ed wop | wdpo:g — wdpo:L HdAd Auowra1d) Sutso|) szUgUY
va INO peoT aINjUINg yUomeH wdpo:zZL-wepo:6 g-v wooljeg MO|313YY dZUdHY
gl dn 19g uai) INd6S: 1 1-INV00:8 Jied SAVAINLYS ¥FdNS TOYLNODLLNYIL
dnlas Nd6S:T1-WV00:8 Adda010d
dnias Nd6S:11-INV00:8 4304
dnlias Nd6S:11-INV00:8 aod
dnias WNd6S 1 1-WV00:8 av Od
dnlas 65 T1-NV00'8 4qq071 00D FONVANIJIANI
r 301440 Wd6S:11-NV00'8 ASVHD | ODIAONODT S.NIWOM 04 NI FN INNOD L 1D0 Tdd
vV AZ1YdLAV Y04 Iva Nd6S: 11-INV00:8 HdAQ AVAMY 474 INOD 4D AVMAVOYE
o aroy | wepp:z) — wdpo:g
Auowala) spiemy | wdpo:g — wdog:9
uadQ bBupeag wdoo:9
000'C g uado £qqoT Emoﬂm
. uadQ siooQ 3pIsINO wdoo:g
:8ouepusny |esseayeay wdoo:y — wdpo:1
83| v lleg >uoM | wdgo:| - wegp:g HdAQ Auowa19) Buiso]) szuJuy
INQ peoT uononpo.d weQo:z-wdoo:L L
005 molbiayy wdgo:) L-wdpo:g | AqqoT eyodss ‘g-v wooljieg
-95UBDUS uondaoay-aid subedweyn wdg|:g-wdo:g Aqqo eiyoosg
-duepuany wooy BIP3N/HEIS wepo:Z1L-Wepo:6 Jsluan ssauisng
3| va dn 19g/s|es.eayay uononpoid wd00:8-Wepo:6 g-V wool|leg MOTOYILIV TZ14dLIYV
MOYS pood ||ed
va InQ peo [euoippy | wdoo:zL-wepo:g O-V IleH ¥quyx3 | |BNUUY 3DIAISS pOO4 UOPJOD TTOZ | 9100 'SUNHL
1en0ebuey) | wepo:zl — wdoos
aoueULIOMad wdgy:g — wdog:Z
oozt uadQ buness wdoo:/
-IUEpUAUY WBIN spry | wdog:2 — wdgo:g
3| v uadQ AqqojuadQ s100Q apIsiNO wdp0:9 HdAQ AVMY A74 FN0D D AVMAVORL

[10C — ATIIM AISIATY
HIOVIEFSOAHCT




[[BH 29UBULIOLId SOAS(J = HIAQ

Swo0y Sunady 20U = d-V NOW

J-V JOO[BAQ JoATY = -V OY

d-v wooljied = d-v 11ve

€ H-V swooy Sunasy J0Oo[IAQ = H-V 0DD d-V swooy Suneapy A1s[[en pueld = 4-V OO O~V S[IeH 1qiyxXq = D~V Hd
. uad( Bupeasg wdog:zL 300Q UoAHAAQ
-duepuIRY uado AqqoT wdo0:zL
3| v uadQ sJooq apisinQ weQg: | HdAQ AVMY AT FWOD D AVMAVOUd
ainpedap pue Jno-peon wdpo:g -wdog:9
sasse|) wdoe:9 -wd 00:1 Qo wooljieg ‘43 99
002 ¥eaiq younT | wd go:| -wd 00:2) s JO
:2ouepUA] $asse|D wdoo:z| -wepo:8 Qo wooljiegd ‘43 99
: P v uonelsibay weQg:/ -WweQo:Z Aqqo wooljeg
‘153 ar dn-)ag pue jeale JualD weQo:9 aon wooljeg apeled uojusjel 6 100 'NNS
aoueuwlopad | wdgl:¢ — wdgo:g
uadp Bunesg wdog:z
uado Aqqon wdgo:2
uadQ s100Qq apISINO wdpg:9
0071 oomw:%otom wdg):¢ — Euco&
. uadQ bunesg wdog:|
Juepusny uado Aqqon wdoo:1
3| v uad(Q s100Q 3pISINO wdog:zL HdAQ AVMY ATd FANOD 49 AVMAVOYL
ar ul-peo sl wd 00:8 %00 U0k apeled uojusjel
Jalo R UL/ (o] wdoo:g
uoissag Buiso|n wdgg:p-wdgh:e 0 wooljjeg
yealg wdgp:c-wdop:g | O wooljeguonouny-aid 9 lleg
uoissnosiq jeued wdop:g-wdgg:Z 9 wooljjeq
yealg wdgg:z-wdog:z | o wooueg/uonoun-ald 9 |1eg
Z doysxiop wdog:z-wdg0:2 4 Asgjjeo pues
yealg wdgo:z-wdoo:z | O wooljeg/uondun-ald 9 lleg
i doys>iopn wdpQ:2-wdoo: | 4 Misjleo pueig
younq | wdgy:ZL-wegyiLi | O wooijeg/uonouni-ald J llegd
UOISSOS/OWOdI9NA | Wegd:| L-weQo:0l O wooljjeg
uadQ suone)s edg pue suonesisiboy weQ:0L-weQo:6 | o wooleg/uonoung-aid o jleg
uonelssibas dn 1o weQQ:6-weQg: /. uonounj-ald O wooljjeg
I [eAlY JuslD weQo:L SAVAUNLYS YAdNS TOYLNODLLNVAL
STVAN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 Ag9010d
SINOOYLNOAVIIL Wd6S:11-INV00:8 43 0d
SINOOY LNOMVIYd Nd6S 11-INV00:8 as oy
SINOOY LNOAVIYd Nd6S T I-INV00:8 av Ood
NOLLVYLSID3Y Nd6S:TI-INV00:8 £qq07 00D FONVANIJAANI
il J01440 Nd6S:11-INV00:-8 dSVHO | JINONODT S.NIJNOM JOd NI I INNOD
06
. INQ 3A0W | weQg:g|— wepo:gl
-duepuany uondaosay | wepo:glL —wdog:6
353 Hf dnjeg sjueag dASH AuUSID | wepQ:QL — wepo:g 3da 0o 0dg HLIM AVMY ATd JNOD

ainpedeq WLiD

Youn pue uoissnasiq |aued
suo|ssag

yeaig

wdog:|
wdoo:1-wdoz:Z1
wdoz:zL-wepl:1)
weQ|:||-wepo:L 1

[10C — ATIHHIM dISIATY
HOVTESOAHCT




[IeH 9ouruLIONad SOA2d = HAAQ

swooy SunesA s0Uoly = d-V NOW

-V JOOIRAQ J9ATY = J-V OY

d-v wooljfed = d-V 'T1vd

14 H-V swooy SunasiAl JOO[12A0 = H-V 0DD d-V swooy Sunsd A1s|en pueld = -V DO O~V s[eH ¥qIyxd = D~V HA
AY
DONILITN Nd6S:11-INV00:8 vV 11vd ONLLIFN YTAAYLS
SIWOOY ONILLITN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 oY
SIWO0Y DNILITN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 a1ivd
SIWOOY ONILIFN N6S:11-INV008 INYQYE ISYHO FONTATANOD
jo)'| SIWOO0Y ONILIFN IN6S:11-NV00:8 H-VY 00D HLTVIH J1'79Nd YINTdd S.NVDIHDIW
dn 13s d6S:11-NV00:8 4-vDD
dn 13s Nd6S:11-INV00:8 DD
dn 13s Nd6S:11-NV00:8 ADVIOLS DHE
dn 1as Nd6S:11-INV00:8 IDVIOLS gHT
va dn 13s Nd6S: 11-INV00:8 09V H3 ALINIZ3/LINOYd | €1 100 ‘SINHL
SIWOOY DNILITN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 WdQadd ISYHD FJONTITINOD
x| SWOOY ONLLITN Nd6S:11-INV00:8 H-3 00D H.L1V3H D1789Nd YIINTdd S.NVOIHOIN
T4 .
-35UeDUS ainyedap jual) wd 00'8 V WO0Y S0JUOW
: pusny uondeoayy/bunasiy wd 00:g -wd 00:6 V WO0Y 30IUOp
3| ar [BALLE JUB)ID wd 00'¢ V WooY S0JUOW STID0TONHIFL LIVINSLIN
IO 2ND wdoo:0l
0€T InQ peo wdpo:0}-wdog:g
:95uepuUBIY weiboid wdgz:g-wdgL:z
: g a|6ui pue xiy wdg}:/-wdQo:L NOILLd3OTY LSTLNOD OLOHd TIONNOD
153 I [BALLY JUS1ID wdoo:+ gv Do LHOISNI TV¥NLTND ALNNOD ININ
ONLLIIN Nd 6S:11 -V 00:8 V H3 ONLLIIN JFHAULS
1N0 JAON A 00:01-Ad 008
YINNIQ/NOILFDTY Nd 0€:L-Nd 0€:S
A4 dN.LIS/NI IAON d 00~V 008 av 11vd YIANNIA SQAVMY OAVIE OSID 71100 'agm
p:\4 dn.ias NV00:Z1 -INd 00:8 av 11vd SQAVMY OAVYE OSUD
vd ONLLIIN Nd6S:11-NV00'8 40D | ONILIIW dIHSYIGWIN "LD0 INOVIT Ul
AV
ONLLIINW Nd6S: 11-INV00'8 ¥V HY ONLLIIN JTIAAYLS
ar MOHS IaviL Nd 00:8-INV00:8 a-v 11ve AIV4 JF9YVI NSAD 11120 'saniL
A4 3I0.LS3Y¥ ISNOH agl HdAdQ AVMY AT INOD 4D AVMAYOUL 01 LDO ‘NOW
INQ anoW | weQQ:z) — wdoo:g
aoueuwlopad | wdgy:z — wdog:9
uadp buness wdoo:9
uado Aqqo wdpg:s
uadQ siooq apIsin0 wdoo:s
00zt asueuuopdd | wdgy:z - wdoo:i

1102 — ATddM dISIATY

HOVTHSOASC




[[eH 2ouBULIONad SOAd = HdAd

SWO0Y Sunsop 0O = -V NOW

4-V J00[RAQ ALY = 4-V OY

d-v wooljied = -V T1vd

S H-V swooy Sullsd]y JoOHsAQ = H-V 00D J-V swooy Sunesp A19][eD pueld = -V DO -V Si[eH ¥qIyxq = O~V Hd
1N0 IAON WVTI-Nd6
FJONVINOIIId Wd6-INdL dWVTLATIIS
AV NI JAON NdS-NV00'S /HdAd FHL ¥AANN 9D AVYMavoud
O PeoT JOpuap wdpo:Z-wdoo v 300Q UoAT/g-Y wooljjeg
000S MOYg uolyse4 wdpo:2 v wooljjeg
-3ouepuany SINOH Moys wdoo:-wdoo:zZ1L g-v wooljleg
’ IIeH Ojul paMO||y JOPUAA weQo:L1 g-v wooljjeg
53 1 [BALIY JUBID wep:0l MOHS TVAI¥E 1TV VMM
SWOO0Y LNONVIYE Wd6S T 1-INV00:8 4-v DD
SINOOY 1LNOAVIYL Wd6S TI-NV00:8 0D
IDVIOLS d6S:TI-NV00:8 FOVIOLS OHA
IDVIOLS Nd6S:11-INV00:8 IOVIOLS gHA
va SLIgIHXd INd6S:1T-NV00:8 ogav Ha ALINIJ/LANOY 91 120 'NNS
000S MOyS uolyse- wdoo:
-93UeDUS SINOH MOYS wdoo:g-wdoo:z1 g-v wooujeg
) P .ﬁ< u| peo-] JOpuap WwepQ:4 L-wepo:g %00Q UoAY/g-v woojeg
153 o} [EALLY JudlD weQQ:L MOHS TvAI¥g TIVd VANM
SINOOY LNOMVIdd d-v DD
SINOOY LNONVIYE Nd6S:11-NV00:8 0o
FOVIOLS INd6S:1T-WV00:8 ADVIOLS DHA
FOVIOLS N6S:11-INV00:8 JOVIOLS gHA
va SLIFIHXT N6S:11-INV00:8 ogv Ha ALINIJZ/LANOYUd SI1.LD0 'LVS
ar LINONVE INd6S:11-INV00:8 aogv NOW NOJHONNT SIV
o DONLLIIN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 v Od ONLLITN SYTIOVNVIN ALID
SIWOOY ONILIANW Wd6S:1T-INV00:8 oy
SIWOO0Y ONILIANW Nd6S:1T-NV00:8 WIQAd 9SVHO FONTYIINOD
o)l SINOOY ONILLIFNW Nd6S:11-NV00:8 H-V 00D HLTVIH O119Nd Y3IANF¥d S.NVOIHIINW
DONLLIINW Nd 65:11 -V 008 00d ONIAVOT LITHLS IN ONLLAFN JIAAYULS
U| peoT JOpUaA wdoo:g-wdoo:S ¥00(g UOAT/D wool|jeg
uonoadsu) a4 wdoo:v
U| peOT JOPUBA wdo0:g-wdoo:z ooq uoky/ggy wooleg
g0 [BALLY JU3ND weQQ:8 MOHS TVANE TTVd VMAM
SWOO0Y LNONVIYd Nd6S:11-INV00:8 4-v DD
SWOOY LNOMVAYL Nd6S:11-NV00:8 133]
IDVAOLS Wd6S:11-NV00:8 IDOVYOLS OHY
IDVIOLS Nd6S:11-INV00:8 IOVIOLS gHd
va S.LIgIHX3 IN6S: 1 1-INV00-8 o9V HA ALINIIZ/LINOYd ¥1 100 T4
A4 wd 0g:g -urpQ:6 HdAQ 071130 0SYD

110C — ATHdM TISIAHY
HOVTESOAHCI




[IeH 2oueuLIopad SOAS( = HIAQ

swooy] SuedA 201UO = (I-V NOW
H-V swooy Sunssiy JOORAQ = H-Y ODD

4-V OOH3AQ JoATY = 4-V OY
-V swooy Sunsa A19][en puein = J-V DO

d-v wooljjeq = -V T1vd
-V s[leH Mquxd = D-V Hd

dnlas W65 11-NV00:3 JH3
or'| dnlLas 651 I-INV00'8 aogv 11ve WNYOd NOTVS S.ATVIA 1102 12 120 Ty
MY Surdins aul) pue Suifeasal 107 Supjred 3eld SOA3Q NV00:9 -INV00:T1 107 Sunyred dAQ DINS
(1dd 00%) TVSYVIHAY NIJO INdOT-NdOE:L OLYFINOD
Hf TYSYVAHTYI NA9-dOg:€ HAAd | NITOIA NHOSSTAANANW ‘T TYIISSVIO S¥D
vda NOILLIZOFY W65 11-NV00'8 aogv JOYNOW VIVD ZIAVHD ¥VSID
LIgIHX3 Wd6S TT-NV00:8 A€401 0¥
d303Y/SLIdIHX3 W65 11-WV00'8 4-a oo
ar ONILLIAN Nd6S:11-AV00'8 V00 TV.LNAd NIFHOS AINIH
dnlas W65 11-WV00'8 I CES 2 ®)
dniLas W65 11-IWV00:8 4V Od
dnias W65 T1-NV00'8 H-V 00D
SINOOY LNOMVAYd Wd6S 1 T-IWV00:8 4-v 0O
dnlas Wd6S:11-WV00:8 OHA
jor| dnlias Nd6S:11-NV00'8 aogv 11ve WNIO0d NOTVS S.ATYIN 110T | 0T .LD0 ‘SUNHL
md Suidins s pue Sueasal 1077 Sulsred eld SOASQ NV00:9 -INV00:Z1 107 3upired dAQ OIS
TVSIVIHTY WdAOI-NdO€ L
TVSIVIHAY Wd9-dOg:€ OLIFINOD
HI dnias WdI-NV00'8 HdAQ | NITOIA NHOSSTAANIN ‘T TVIISSYID S¥D
NOFHONNT Nd6S:11-NV00'8 WIQ¥E ISYHO LVAY1TY ¥vV0od WYDOH
HONNT/LIGIHX3 Wd6S T1-WV00'8 4711vd SAVNIWES NOILLVONAd
o)l NOISSAS TVHANAD Nd6S T 1-NV00'8 v 11vd TYIIDANS-TVIIAIN NOSSTION
Nd6S 11-NV00:8
Wd6S:11-WV00'8 ONNJ-3dd ad 11ve
NOLLVYLSIOTY
va UVYNIWAS % LSYAIvIdd d6S 1 1-NV00'8 ao 11ve LINFAT 0D % ISVHD NVOIOW df
SWOOY 1NOMVIId Wd6S TT-INV00'8 4V DD
NOILLVYLSIOTY Wd6S:11-INV00'8 0D
ar ASYOMOHS INGS 651 1-NV00°8 JH3 1107 0dXd NOLLVZITYNLYIA T1Vd 61 LDO ‘ddam
MY Suidins su) pue Suifeasas 107 Sunired 30eld SOA3Q NV00:9 -INV00:Z1 107 3upired dAQ DS
SYVNIWNIS NOLLYONAH
jox:| VIV NOLLJFOTY Nd6S 1 1-WNV00'8 WI@Id ISYHD TYIIDINS-TVIIATN NOSSTAONW
DMU/INLAS Nd6S:11-INV00:8 ONNA-3dd aD 11vd
va dnias Nd6S 11-NV00'8 ao 11vd LNIAT 00 % ASYHO NVOAOW df
dNL3s ONILIIN Nd6S T 1-WV00'8 4-V D0
NOLLVYLSIOFY WNd6S:11-WV00:8 I9%s)
ar NI FSAOW-INITS Nd6S 1 1-WV00'8 OH3 1102 OdXd NOLLVZITVNLYIA 1TV4 81 100 'Sanl
x| Suidiys sul| pue Surfeasas 3077 Subjred 308|d SOAQ V009 -INV00:T1 107 Supired JAQ DS L1 100 'NOW

1102 — ATHIM dISIATYA

HIOVTESOAEC




[[eH 90ueuLIoyISd S0ASd = HIAQ

swooy Sunas 90O = J-V NOW

H-V swooy Sursdj JOOIAQ = H-V 00D

-V JOOAQ JAATY = J-V OY
4-V swooy Sunesy A1sj[en pueln = J-V DO

d-v wooljjeq = g-V T1vd
-V slieH 1qiyxd = D~V Hd

dnlLas Ag90THSTAM JONTFITINOD
dnias W65 11-INV00:8 av 11ve NOLLVLITIGVHIY IN 1107 OdVIN
STIVANW W65 1 1-INV00:8 TIVH TVLIOTY
r SONILIAN Nd6S:11-INV00:8 aogv J0INON S13YD3S 40 NIVHO-TVIONVNIL VSN
LNoMvIdd W65 T11-INV00:8 HOD 099
LNoMvIdg WNd6S:11-INV00:8 43a09v bo 1102
vda ONILIIN Wd6S:11-INV00°8 a1ivd | - MVTLNIWAOTINT NOSNHOf JTTTIN §z 120 'sdni
TVSIVIHTY NJOE: T T-INdOEL
SV dnLas INdS-INV00'8 HdAd FIOLVAOYL 7] 4D VIAdO
STVANW INd6S TI-INV00:8 TIVH Tv.LIOTd
I SONILIINW Wd6S: 11-INV00°8 asgv J0UNOW S1TIDIS 40 NIVHI-TVIONVNIL VSN
NOILdIDTd Nd6S:11-INV00:8 WIadd ISVHD
SWOOY 1LNOMVIId Nd6S:1T-INV00:8 4V 0d
SINOO0Y 1NONVAId Nd6S: T I-INV00:8 H-V 0DD
SWO0Y 1NoMvIdd WJ6S: 1 1-INV00:8 v oo
LigiHxd Nd6S:11-INV00'8 OH3I
o) NOISSIS TVIINTD Wd6S: E1-INV00'8 aosgav 11ve NNMIOA NOTVS S ATV 1102 $T LOO 'NOW
IVSYVIHTY INJOE:01-NdOS9
AV dnids NdS-INV00°8 HdAd FAOLYAOYL TI “4D VHIdO
NOILJIOTd Nd6S:TT-NV00:8 R CERLR)
SIWOOY 1LNOMVIdd Wd6S: 11-NV00:8 4-v Od
SWOO0Y 1NoMVIdd Nd6S:T11-NV00'8 HV 099
SIWOO0Y 1LNOYVIdd INd6S:T1-INV00:8 4V 0D
LIgIHX3 Nd6S: 11-NV00:8 DHA
o)l NOISSTS TVIINID IN6S: 1 1-NV00:8 angav 1ive WNYOd NOTVS S ATVIN 110T £2 100 'NNS
1N0O JAON VZ1-d01
FONVIWIOIYAd NdOT-NdS HdAd OLYTONOD
Hf Lvagdn INdOE:L-WdL TIVH TV.LIOFY | NITOI4 NHOSSTIANIN ‘T TVIISSVID SUD
b:\4 TVSAVAHTY Wd-Nd1 TIVH TV.LIDTY FAOLVAOYL 7] 4D VHIdO
NOLLdFOTY WNd6S TI-NV00:8 Wdadd aSvHD
SIWOOY 1NOMVIdd Nd6S:11-INV00:8 4V Od
SWOOY LNOMVIYd INd6S:11-INV00'8 H-V 0DD
SINOOY 1NOMVIdd Wd6S:11-AV00:8 4-v 50
LI9IHXd Nd6S:11-INV00:8 OH3I
od NOISSIS TVIINTID Wd6S:11-INV00:8 aogv 11vd WNNE0A NOTVS S ATYIN 110T 7T 1D0 'LVS
Md Surdis surj pue Sutfeasal 107 Suryred 39eld SOAQ WV00:9 -INV00:Z1 1077 Sunyred dAQ DINS
JONVINYOIIAd INJO1-INd8 HdAQ OLYTONOD
Hf Lvaddn INJOE:L-INdL TIVH TVLIOTY | NITOIA NHOSSTAANTN ‘T TVIISSVIOD SUD
SWOOY LNOMVTId Nd6S: T1-NV00:8 -V DD

HOVTESOAEC

[10T — ATIIHM dISIATYA




[[EH 3oUBULIOMSd SOASQ = HAAQ

swooy SunesjA 0O = G-V NOW
H-V swooy 3unasiy JOoHsA0 = H-V ODD

d4-V JO0H3AQ JoATY = 4-V OY
-V swooy Sunssy A19][eD pueln = J-V DO

d-v wooljeqg = J-v T1vd
-V siieH 1qiyxq = D-v H4

NOISSIS TVIINAD WNd6S:11-NV00:8 4-vOd
SIWOOY LNOAVIIL Wd6S:11-NV00:8 H-V 099
o) NOISSIS TVIINID Nd6S:11-NV00:8 V H3 AIVND TYNOILVN ANWYV IN
YINNIQ Wd6S-11-NV00-8 ajd 11vd YINNIA
N YINNIA Nd6S:11-INV00:8 gv 11vd AIVMYVY JOIAYES HLTVAH WMILD3dS
ar ONILLIIN Wd6S:11-NV00:8 430049V 09 SINVXT ONIIIINIONT SFION 6C 100 'LVS
JONVINIOLI3d d0¢:01-d0g:L
AV ATVL VIIdO F3id d.L-d0€:9 HdAd FIAOLVAOYL 1 D VIIdO
STVAN Wd6S 11-INV00:8 TIVH TVLIOFY
r SONILIIN INd6S: 11-INV00:8 a‘gv JOUNOW S1IYDIS 4O NIVHI-TVIONVNIA VSN
o): | dN.L3S INd6S-11-INV00:8 V Hi MIVNO TVNOLLVN ANYV 1IN
WOOY LNOoJVvIYd Wd6S 11-INV00:8 nWiayd ISvHO
SIWOOY LNnodvadd Nd6S 11-NV00:8 4V Od JONTYFINOCD
r JIIAYIS dOO4 Nd6S:11-INV00:8 INNJ-Fid Od NOLLV.LI'TVHIY IA 1107 O¥VIA
ar DONILLIIN Nd6S-11-NV00:8 43a049v DD SINVXHT ONIIFINIONT SFFON 87 LOO Tdd
Avd ddvd HdAd FAOLVAOHL 11 D vIIIO
NOLLdIOT Y Nd6S:11-NV00:8 ad 1ivd NOILVSYIANOD MIN V
STVIN Wd6S:T11-NV00:8 TIVH TVLIOTA
r SONLLIIN Nd6S: 1 I-NV00:8 adsgv J0INON S1IYDIS JO NIVHO-TVIONVNIA VSN
WOOYLNOAVIIY Wd6S:11-WV00:8 H-V 009D
WOOY LNOAVIYE Nd6S:11-NV00:8 WJQydg ISVHO
SIWOOY LNOAVIAE Nd6S:11-INV00:8 4V O
ONILIFN/LIGIHXT Wd6S-T11-NV00:8 av 1T1va JONAIITINOD
il NOLLVILSIOFA Nd6S:11-INV00:8 AdEOT HSTIM NOLLVLITIGVHIY TN 1107 OdVIA
WOOY ONILSIL vav Nd6S:T1T-INV00-8 vV 05D
WOOY DONILSIL vav Wd6S:11-NV00:8 g NOW
ar ONILIIN d6S:11-INV00:8 43029V DD SINVXT ONIRIFINIONT SFAON LT 120 'SUNHL
TVSYVIHTY NIdO NJOE:0F-NdOE:L
AV dNniis WdS-NV00:8 HdAd FAOLVAQHL 11 4D VIIdO
STVIN N6 T1-INV00-8 TIVH TV 1IO3d
I SONILIIN Nd6S-11-NV00:8 asgyv JOUNOW SLIYOIS JO NIVHO-TVIONVNIL VSN
NOOY LNOAVIId Wd6S-11-NV00:8 WI@J4g 3SVHO
SIWOOY LNOAVIYd Wd6S T1-WV00:8 vVOoud
ONILIIN/LIGIHXT Wd6S-TI-WV00-8 gav T1vd ONFIFINOD
r NOLLVYLSIOT A Nd6S:11-INV00:8 A9dOT HSTIM NOILV.LI'TIGVHIY IN 1107 OdVIA 9¢ 100 'aam
TVSYVIHIA NdO0E-01-NdOE L
AV dni3as WdS-NV00:8 HdAdQ FAOLVAOYL 11 "D VIEdO

1102 — ATddM dISIATY
HOVITSOAHC




[[eH 2oueuLIolad SOA9Qd = HAAQ

Sw00Y JunsdjA 200UOIN = -V NOW

H-V swooy Sunsaj JooHsAQ = H-Y 0DD

-V OOH3AQ 1oAY = 4-V OY
-V swooy 3unsa]y A13[[eD puein = J-V OO

d-v woodjjeqd = d-v 1T1vd
J-V sileH Mquuxg = 5-v H4

ar WOOY ONLLSFL VAV Nd6S:11-NV00:8 vV 09D SIWVXH DNIYFINIONT SFFON
SIWOOY LNoAVIYd Wd6S T11-NV00:8 4V 5D SAYVANVIS JLVIS
va NOISSIS TVIINTD Nd6S:11-INV00:8 and 11vd TI0D NOWIWOD 'NAd 40 "1d3d TN 1£.100 'NOW
NOISSIS TV3INID Wd6S: T1-NV00:8 4V Od
SWOOY LNOMv3dd Wd6S:T1-INV00-8 H-V ODD
o) | NOISSIS TVIINID Wd6S:11-INV00:8 V HI AQIVNO TYVNOILVN ANWIY NVODIHOIN 0€ LOO'NNS
1NO JA0N V0¢:7-d0¢-01
JONVINIOLYdd d0¢:01-d0t L
AV ATVL ViIIdO TId dL-d0g:9 HdAd FIOLVAOHL T D vIIdO

HOVTESOASC]

110C — ATIddM AISIATY




